
CITY OF THE DALLES HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION AGENDA 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Page 1 of 99 

AGENDA 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
November 19, 2025 

4:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers 
313 Court Street, The Dalles, Oregon 

Via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83000976030?pwd=Y3NwM1NPVUk3anVPUjNTdythYW1sZz09 

Meeting ID: 830 0097 6030      Passcode: 222217 
Dial:  1-669-900-6833 or 1-253-215-8782 

Upon request, the City will make a good faith effort to provide an interpreter for the deaf 
or hard of hearing at regular meetings if given 48 hours’ notice. To make a request, 

please contact the City Clerk and provide your full name, sign language preference, and 
any other relevant information.   

Contact the City Clerk at (541) 296-5481 ext. 1119, or amell@ci.the-dalles.or.us. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – October 22, 2025

6. PUBLIC COMMENT – During this portion of the meeting, anyone may speak on any
subject that does not later appear on the agenda.  Five minutes per person will be allowed.

7. PUBLIC HEARING
A. HLC Application 222-25, Katie Montag

Request: Applicant is requesting approval for the demolition of the existing non-
contributing detached garage located at the southwest corner of the property, accessed
from the alley, and for the construction of a new detached garage in the same
location.

8. RESOLUTION
A. HLC Resolution 207-25, Katie Montag, 420 East 8th Street

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83000976030?pwd=Y3NwM1NPVUk3anVPUjNTdythYW1sZz09
mailto:amell@ci.the-dalles.or.us


CITY OF THE DALLES HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION AGENDA 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Page 2 of 99 

9. STAFF COMMENTS

10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

11. ADJOURNMENT
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting conducted in a room in compliance with ADA standards. 
. 

Prepared by/ 
Crystal Sayre, Administrative Assistant 
Community Development Department 



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025
Page 1 of 25

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION

MINUTES

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION MEETING
October 22, 2025

4:00 p.m.

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
313 Court Street, The Dalles, Oregon  97058

Via Zoom / Livestream via City Website

PRESIDING: Forust Ercole, Chair

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Eric Gleason, Victor Johnson

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Bob McNary, Tom Giamei

OTHERS PRESENT: City Councilor Scott Randall

OTHERS ABSENT: Museum Commission Representative Julie Reynolds

STAFF PRESENT: Director Joshua Chandler, Senior Planner Sandy Freund,
City Manager Matthew Klebes, City Clerk Amy Ell, 
Administrative Assistant Crystal Sayre

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Ercole at 4:01 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Ercole led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
It was moved by Gleason and seconded by Johnson to approve the agenda as presented. The 
motion carried 3/0, Ercole, Gleason, and Johnson voting in favor, none opposed, McNary and 
Giamei absent.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
It was moved by Gleason and seconded by Johnson to approve the minutes of August 27, 2025 
as written. The motion carried 3/0, Ercole, Gleason, and Johnson voting in favor, none opposed, 
McNary and Giamei absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 3 of 99



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025
Page 2 of 25

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION

PRESENTATION
Robert’s Rules of Order – Amie Ell, City Clerk

Ms. Ell provided a presentation on Robert’s Rules of Order, Attachment 1, explaining their 
purpose in ensuring fair, structured, and efficient meetings. She reviewed basic parliamentary 
procedures, including making motions, obtaining recognition from the Chair before speaking, 
and proper voting practices.

She distributed a quick-guide reference sheet on common motions and discussed frequent errors 
such as unclear phrasing or speaking out of turn. Commissioners appreciated the refresher, and 
no questions were raised.

PUBLIC HEARINGS
HLC Application 223-25, City of The Dalles, 201 Federal Street

Request: The City of The Dalles is proposing a public plaza on Federal Street between First and 
Second Streets in the Commercial Historic District. Plans include shaded seating, landscaping, 
an interactive water feature, and other amenities to provide a public gathering space.

Chair Ercole read the hearing script into the record, outlining procedures and criteria under the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Use and Development Ordinance.

Chair Ercole opened the public hearing at 4:13 p.m.

Senior Planner Sandy Freund presented the staff report for HLC 223-25, Attachment 2.

Ms. Freund described the project as new construction within the historic district, designed in 
accordance with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties.

Key features include:

Multiple shade structures with integrated seating areas;

A bike hub with repair station, racks, and lockers;

A central water feature and public art spaces;

Wayfinding signage consistent with Columbia River Gorge design standards.

She noted that the adjacent Transportation Building would remain, undergoing minor exterior 
updates and internal upgrades to support plaza utilities. Two freestanding signs would identify 
the Gorge Bike Hub and provide interpretive information.

Ms. Freund recommended approval through HLC Resolution 206-25, subject to conditions of 
approval addressing materials, colors, and archaeological procedures.

Commissioner Gleason commended the inclusion of an archaeological condition but noted the 
finding should list the criterion as “met as conditioned” rather than “not applicable.” Staff 
agreed to edit the staff report finding.

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 4 of 99



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025
Page 3 of 25

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Commissioner Johnson inquired about opportunities for commercial advertising within the bike 
hub signage. City Manager Matthew Klebes responded that signage would adhere to the Gorge 
Trail branding standards and serve informational and navigational purposes only, not commercial 
advertising.
Johnson suggested considering ways to highlight local lodging, dining, and cycling routes for 
visitors, to enhance tourism while maintaining low impact on the district. Mr. Klebes agreed the 
concept aligned with the project’s goals and could be explored through partnerships with the 
Main Street Program.

Further discussion covered bike lockers, fix-it stations, and design coordination with regional 
partners. Mr. Klebes explained design details were still being finalized and noted examples from 
Sisters, Oregon, could offer useful insight.

Commissioner Gleason asked whether the Craig’s Building mural would be affected. Mr. Klebes 
clarified that it lies on private property, and no changes are proposed as part of this project, 
though coordination with property owners is ongoing.

Councilor Randall observed this was the Commission’s first review of a street-to-plaza 
conversion rather than a building alteration. Commissioners agreed it was consistent with the 
Commission’s role in preserving the district’s character.

Commissioner Johnson expressed strong support, noting that pedestrian use of streets is 
historically consistent with early urban patterns in The Dalles.

Commissioner Gleason praised staff for integrating the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards early 
in design development and for bringing the proposal to the Commission prior to final design.
Commissioner Johnson commended the public engagement process and noted broad community 
support.

With no further deliberation, this portion of the public hearing was closed at 4:33 p.m.

It was moved by Gleason and seconded by Johnson to approve HLC 223-25. The motion carried 
3/0, Ercole, Gleason, and Johnson voting in favor, none opposed, McNary and Giamei absent.

RESOLUTIONS
HLC Resolution 206-25, City of The Dalles, 201 Federal Street

It was moved by Gleason and seconded by Johnson to approve HLC Resolution 206-25 as 
written. The motion carried 3/0, Ercole, Gleason, and Johnson voting in favor, none opposed, 
McNary and Giamei absent.

STAFF COMMENTS
Senior Planner Freund previewed discussion topics for November, including:

Annual Goal Setting;

Review of projects involving non-contributing structures within or adjacent to historic 
districts.

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 5 of 99



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025
Page 4 of 25

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION

She described instances where garages or secondary structures on historic properties require 
removal or replacement, raising questions about whether such actions should undergo HLC 
review.

Commissioner Gleason stated that demolition or replacement of any structure within the 
district—even non-contributing—should require Commission review. Director Chandler and Ms. 
Freund agreed to bring forward a case study for consideration at the next meeting.

Director Chandler further noted plans to propose fee schedule adjustments, explaining that 
current HLC applications cost $85 while newspaper noticing costs exceed $115, resulting in a 
taxpayer subsidy. Commissioners discussed whether public notices should continue in the 
newspaper or be limited to mailed notices.

Commissioner Gleason recalled that HLC applications were once free to encourage participation, 
while Commissioners Johnson and Chandler emphasized balancing accessibility with fiscal 
responsibility. City Manager Klebes provided budget context, noting limited property tax growth 
under Measures 5 and 50 and the City’s reliance on user fees for sustainability.

Commissioner Johnson suggested that title companies could include a notice at closing for 
properties within the Historic District, ensuring buyers are aware of applicable restrictions and 
procedures.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
Commissioner Gleason reported that the Original Courthouse Regional History Forum will 
return in February 2026, dedicated to the late Carl Vercouteren, a long-time Commission 
member and community historian.

ADJOURNMENT
Being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:58 p.m.
___________________________________________________________________________

Meeting conducted in a room in compliance with ADA standards.

Submitted by/
Crystal Sayre, Administrative Assistant
Community Development Department

SIGNED: ____________________________________
Forust Ercole, Chair

ATTEST: ____________________________________
Crystal Sayre, Administrative Assistant
Community Development Department

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 6 of 99



ROBERTS RULES
OF ORDER

BASIC COMMITTEE OVERVIEW

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 5 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 7 of 99



WHY USE
ROBERT‘S
RULES OF
ORDER?

Provide a structured
approach for more efficient
meetings and help keep
discussions on track.

Promote fairness by giving
everyone a voice and the
space to be heard.

Facilitate effective
communication and decision-
making during Committee or
Commission meetingsGrounded in integrity,

equality, and respect,
Robert’s Rules have
remained relevant for
nearly 150 years.

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 6 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 8 of 99



ELECTION OF CHAIR & SECRETARY
CHAIR

Facilitates the meeting,
maintains order, recognizes

speakers, and ensures
adherence to the agenda.

Signs approved minutes
SECRETARY

Any member may
nominate a candidate.
Nominations do not
require a second.

Any member may
nominate a candidate.
Nominations do not
require a second.

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 7 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 9 of 99



SPEAKING PROCEDURES

Members should wait
to be acknowledged
by the Chair before

speaking.

Speak only when
recognized.
No interruptions or
speaking over others.
Stay on topic per the
agenda.

Staff presents first.
Committee
members ask
questions when
recognized by the
Chair.

RECOGNIZING
SPEAKERS

FOLLOWING
PROCEDURE

STAFF
PRESENTATIONS

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 8 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 10 of 99



MAKING
A
MOTION

Motions are made  for committee actions, including approval of the
agenda, minutes, and approving the recommended budget.

1
Member makes a clearly worded motion to take action.

“I move...”
All motions are recorded in the minutes

2

Motion must be seconded.
“I second the motion...”
A second allows discussion to occur; it does not signify approval
A motion without a second does not move forward

3
Chairperson restates the motion.

“It has been moved by... and seconded by... that...”
Provides any needed clarity

4
Discussion / Debate occurs

Maker of the motion begins the discussion and Chairperson facilitates discussion
Amendments may be offered - return to step 1 to amend a motion: “I move to amend the motion by...”

5
Chairperson closes discussion and states the question / asks for  vote

“The question is on the adoption of the motion that...”
Motion repeated word for word

6
Chairperson provides voting directions

“Those in favor of the motion say aye”;
“Those opposed, say no”

7

Chairperson announces the result of the vote
“The ayes have it, and the motion is adopted”
“The noes have it, and the motion is lost”
Recorded in the minutes

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 9 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 11 of 99



COMMON
MISTAKES
TO AVOID

Speaking Without Recognition: Always be acknowledged
by the Chair before speaking.

Unclear Motion Phrasing: Clearly state motions using
proper language.

Skipping Motion Seconding: Motions need a second
before discussion can proceed.

Irrelevant Discussions: Stay on-topic and avoid
straying into unrelated matters.

Improper Voting: Ensure clarity on what is being voted on
and confirm results.

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 10 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 12 of 99



THANK YOU
FOR SERVING ON OUR BUDGET COMMITTEES

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 11 of 25

Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 13 of 99



City of The Dalles Historic 
Landmarks Commission

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2025| 4:00 PM

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 12 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 14 of 99



HLC Application #223-25
Applicant: City of The Dalles
Site Address: Federal Street from E. 2nd Street to E. 1st Street
Historic Status: Not listed
Historic District: The Dalles Commercial
Existing Use: None/Vacated Right-of-Way

Request: Approval to develop a public pedestrian plaza between East 
First and Second Streets on recently vacated segment of Federal 
Street.

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 13 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 15 of 99



VVicinityy 
MMap

E. 3rd Street

E. 2nd Street
Co

ur
t S

tr
ee

t

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St
re

et

E.E.EEEE.E.E.E. 333333rdrdrddrdrdddd SSSSSSSStStStStStStSSSSStSS rerererereeeeeetetetetettetetetetett

EEEEE.EE.EE...E..E...EE... 22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222nndnddddnndnddddnnnnnnndnndndddddnnddnddnnndnnndndddnndddnddd SSSSSStStStStSStStttttSSSSttStSttttttSSStttttSSStttSSSSttttttStttSttSStttttttSStStttSttSStSSSSttttSStttSSStrrrerereererrrrrrrrrerrrrrerreerrrrrerreeerrrrereerereererrerererreereeeeeeetetetttttteettttttettteeeetetteeeeeeetett
CoCoooCoCooCoCooCoCooCoCooCoCoCoCoCoCoCoCoCoCoCoCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC

urrrrururrurururururururruruuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu
ttttt t tttt tttttt

tStttttttttStttStSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
eereeereeerereerrrr

eteteteteteteteteteteteteee

Plaza Area

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 14 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 16 of 99



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 15 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 17 of 99



Applicant Proposal

New Construction:
• Proposed public plaza is categorized as new construction in a historic district.
• Designed in accordance with Secretary of Interior’s Guidelines
• Compatible with the district in scale, materials and colors.
• Focus on pedestrian amenities:
• Shade structures
• Seating
• Natural stone paving
• Historic style lighting

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 16 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 18 of 99



Site Plan

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 17 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 19 of 99



View south 
to 2nd

Street

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 18 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 20 of 99



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 19 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 21 of 99



MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 20 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 22 of 99



View from 
Bike Hub 
looking 
towards 
2nd Street

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 21 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 23 of 99



OOverview:: Transportationn Bldg.. && Bikee Hub

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 22 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 24 of 99



PProposedd 
Bikee Hubb withh 
wayfindingg 
signage

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 23 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 25 of 99



Recommendation

All applicable criteria meet:
Secretary of the Interior Standards
The Dalles Municipal Code, Title 11 criteria

Staff recommends the HLC adopt Resolution No. 206-25,
granting approval to develop a public pedestrian plaza
between East First and Second Streets on a recently
vacated segment of Federal Street, based on findings of
fact with conditions of approval.

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 24 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 26 of 99



City of The Dalles Historic 
Landmarks Commission

QUESTIONS?

MINUTES 
Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting 
October 22, 2025 
Page 25 of 25

Attachment 2

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 27 of 99



HLC 222-25 | Montag 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
Historic Landmarks Commission 

HLC 222-25 
 

 
Applicant:  Katie Montag 
Procedure Type: Quasi-judicial 
Assessor’s Map: Township 1N 13E Section 3 CA 
Tax Lots: 5400 
Address: 420 East 8th Street 
Zoning District: High Density Residential (RH) 
Historic Status: National Register Property: 

• Dr. J.A. Reuter Residence (1-Contributing structure /1 non-
contributing structure) 

• Oregon State Inventory #136 (Eligible/Significant) 
Historic District: Not in an historic district 
Existing Use:  Residence (contributing resource) and detached garage (non-

contributing structure) 
Prepared by: Sandy Freund, Senior Planner 
Hearing Date: November 19, 2025 

REQUEST: Applicant is requesting approval for the demolition of the existing non-contributing 
detached garage located at the southwest corner of the property, accessed from the alley, and for 
the construction of a new detached garage in the same location. The subject property is located at 
420 East 8th Street, The Dalles, Oregon, and is further described as 1N 13E 3CA Tax Lot 5400, 
zoned “RH” – High Density Residential. The site includes a residence listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places and the Oregon Inventory of Historic Properties, historically known 
as the Dr. J.A. Reuter Residence. 
A detailed list of the proposed materials and scope of work for the replacement garage is 
included in the application materials. 
 
NOTIFICATION: Published advertisement in local newspaper, The Columbia Gorge News and 
appearing two consecutive weeks, with the first at least 20 days prior to the hearing (October 29, 
2025), notification to property owners within 100 feet, and State Historic Preservation Office 
(SHPO). 
 

CITY of THE DALLES 
313 COURT STREET 

THE DALLES, OREGON 97058 
  

 

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 28 of 99



HLC 222-25 | Montag 
Page 2 of 5 

BACKGROUND: The Dr. J. A. Reuter residence is a two and a half story Arts and Crafts-style 
bungalow house located on a third of an acre at the southwest corner of the intersection of East 
8th and Laughlin Streets in the Laughlin Bluffs area of The Dalles. The home was built c. 1890 
and later enlarged in 1909. Also located on the site is a small, non-historic detached garage sited 
at the southwest corner, which is “counted as a non-contributing feature of the property”.1 
 
ANALYSIS: The Historic Landmarks Commission (Commission) is responsible for 
conducting hearings associated with proposed alterations to historic buildings. The Dalles 
Municipal Code (TDMC), Title 11 Planning, Chapter 11.12 Historic Resources, provides 
process as well as established design guidelines to assist the Commission in making these 
decisions. The purpose of the Commission, Chapter 11.12, and associated review criteria is 
to: 

• Protect historic and cultural resources from destruction, inappropriate alteration, and 
incompatible adjacent development; 

• Stabilize and improve property values in historic districts and City-wide; 

• Enhance the City's attractiveness to visitors and residents, and stimulate business, 
industry, and tourism; 

• Educate The Dalles' citizens and visitors concerning the City's heritage; 

• Preserve the historic housing stock of The Dalles; and 

• To comply with The Dalles Comprehensive Plan regarding historic resources under 
Statewide Planning Goal 5. 

 
REVIEW CRITERIA: 
City of The Dalles Municipal Code, Chapter 11.12 Historic Resources 
Article 11.12.070, Section A. Review Criteria 
3. Secretary’s Standards. Commission decisions shall be based on the Secretary of the 

Interior’s Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties. Findings #1 - #10 are 
pertinent standards from the Secretary of the Interior’s Guidelines for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties. 

1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that required 
minimal change to the defining characteristic of the building and its site and 
environment.  
FINDING #1: Applicant will retain the purpose and use of the site, namely the historic 
residence will remain as is. The applicant requests approval to demolish the existing 
detached garage, identified as a non-contributing structure, located at the southwest 
corner of the property and accessed from the alley. The applicant indicates that the 
existing garage is in poor condition and poses a safety hazard. A new detached garage is 
proposed to replace it, measuring 20 feet by 26 feet, a little larger than existing structure, 
which measures 14 feet 6 inches by 19 feet 7 inches. The new replacement garage will 

                                                           
1 National Register of Historic Places: Dr. J. A. Reuter House, Section 7, page 1. U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park 
Service. 

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 29 of 99



HLC 222-25 | Montag 
Page 3 of 5 

feature exterior materials and colors compatible with the historic residence. Criterion 
met with conditions. 

2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of 
historic materials or alterations of features and spaces that characterize a property 
shall be avoided. 
FINDING #2: Applicant requests replacement of the existing, non-contributing detached 
garage due to its dilapidated condition. The applicant will not be altering or modifying 
the historic residence, but rather replacing the existing detached garage with a new 
detached garage in the same location as current garage. Criterion met.  

3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. 
Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural 
features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken. 
FINDING #3: Applicant is not proposing exterior modifications to the historic residence, 
but rather replacing a non-contributing detached garage with a newer garage that can 
accommodate two vehicles and not just one. The replacement garage will match in colors 
and materials in order to blend with the historic residence on the subject property. Staff 
finds that the proposed work does not create a false sense of historical development as it 
will not alter any historic feature. Criterion met. 

4. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic 
significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved. 
FINDING #4: The existing site will be retained as Dr. J. A. Reuter House. Applicant is 
uncertain when the existing detached garage was constructed, assumes perhaps sometime 
in the 1940s or 1950s. The garage structure is listed on the national register as a “small, 
non-historic detached garage…is counted as a non-contributing feature of the property.”2 
The proposed removal and replacement of this garage will not alter the historic residence 
on the site nor alter its designation. All original structures on the site will be preserved 
and retained. Criterion met.  

5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved. 
FINDING #5: Applicant has stated the new replacement garage color and siding will 
match the historic home’s colors. The use of similar colors, combined with the proposed 
materials (HardiePlank lap siding) resembling wood siding will help maintain the site's 
overall character and historical integrity. Applicant proposes one (1) Milgard window 
using either wood or vinyl for the frame and color to match the garage and residence. 
Again, the historic residence is not being altered and will remain in ‘as-is’ condition. 
Criterion met. 

6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the 
severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature 
shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where 
possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by 
documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence. 

                                                           
2 Ibid. 

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 30 of 99



HLC 222-25 | Montag 
Page 4 of 5 

FINDING #6: See Finding #5. Applicant is proposing demolition and replacement of the 
existing detached garage, which is listed on the national register as a non-contributing 
structure. Applicant has provided an example color palette with the application materials, 
as well as photographs of the existing garage structure demonstrating its dilapidated 
condition. Criterion met.  

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting that cause damage to historic 
materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be 
undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 
FINDING #7: Applicant is not proposing the use of chemical or physical treatments on 
the structure of the new detached garage. Criterion not applicable. 

8. Significant archaeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 
preserved. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 
FINDING #8: Applicant is proposing minimal excavation and disturbance as part of the 
garage replacement. If historical artifacts are found to be over 75 years in age, all state 
laws and regulations will be required to be followed per the direction of the State 
Archeologist. In addition, the applicant will be required to submit a Physical Constraints 
Permit along with the associated building permit for the construction of the new structure 
if the total amount of cut/fill exceeds 50 cubic yards. Criterion met with conditions. 

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 
historic materials that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated 
from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural 
features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment. 
FINDING #9: As previously mentioned, the applicant is proposing to demolish and 
replace the structure with new detached garage that will accommodate two vehicles rather 
than one. The proposed garage will match as closely as possible in materials and colors in 
order help maintain the site's overall character and historical integrity. Applicant 
proposes using wood materials (Douglas fir) for the garage framing, and HardiePlank lap 
siding 7” reveal on the exterior to emulate the look of wood while also providing weather 
protection. Applicant proposes exterior paint colors to match as closely as possible to the 
historic home. Criterion met. 

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a 
manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 
property and its environment would be unimpaired. 
FINDING #10: No additions to the existing historic structure, the Dr. J. A. Reuter 
House, are proposed at this time. Criterion not applicable. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Based on the application materials and findings demonstrating 
compliance with the applicable criteria, Staff finds this proposal meets the standards of the 
Secretary of the Interior and The Dalles Municipal Code, Title 11- Planning, Chapter 11.12 
Historic Resources and recommends approval of Historic Landmarks Commission No. 222-
25 subject to the following conditions of approval. This approval is based on the applicant’s 

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 31 of 99



HLC 222-25 | Montag 
Page 5 of 5 

submitted plans, written narrative, and supplemental application materials received on September 
12, 2025 and subsequent materials submitted on October 6, 2025. 

 
Conditions of Approval:  

1. Work shall be completed in substantial conformance to the pictures and proposals as 
submitted and reviewed. 

2. The applicant shall submit plans for a demolition permit to the City of The Dalles. 
3. The applicant shall submit plans for a building permit to City of The Dalles and then 

Wasco County Building Codes. 
4. The applicant shall submit a Physical Constraints Permit to be reviewed and approved by 

the City Engineer for all cut/fill, grading, and groundwork required for the construction 
of the new detached garage structure if the total amount of cut/fill exceeds 50 cubic 
yards. 

5. The new replacement garage exterior materials and colors shall be compatible with the 
historic residence and match as closely as possible as proposed. 

6. If historical artifacts over 75 years old are found on the site in relation to the proposed 
project, resulting from land disturbance, excavation, or grading activities, all applicable 
state laws and regulations shall be followed in accordance with the guidance of the State 
Archeologist.  

7. The applicant is required to notify the Community Development Department of any 
alteration of approved plans. 

 

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 32 of 99



^SE^^ City of The Dallesy
^^^

s;]5

':.-••

Received:

Community Development Dept
313 Court Street
The Dalles, OR 97058
(541) 296-5481, ext. 1125
www.thedalles.org

Application #:

Filing Fee:

Receipt #:

Deemed Complete:

Ready to Issue:

Date Issued:

Historic Landmarks Application
This application is required for all new construction, modifications, and/or alterations to the exterior of
certified historic structures and all structures within certified historic districts and reviewed by the City of
The Dalles' Historic Landmarks Commission. The review criteria for each application are the Secretary of the
Interior's Standards. These standards have been adopted by The Dalles Municipal Code Chapter 11.12
Historic Resources as local review criteria.

//
Applicant -' IZ^+t^

Name: ^cct^r^/V ^0^^^
Address: Ll ^ ^ ^ ^
Tw'^>^.<\e.^ 0^ ^"705^

Phone #: S^/-'3^^'OC/^-3
Email: ^^ ^ @ J C r^. A € "^

Legal Owner (if different than Applicant)

Name:

Address:

Phone ft:

Email:

Property Information

Address: ^^0 0

Zone:

^€. ^ SL Mapand Tax Lot: 0</V/-3 ^03C.^OSOQC> 00
ML

Current Use: Rj£^J-<-'t.e.nO^-

List any known archeotogical resources on site: .^^ ^t\c^/\)

Department Use Only

Historic Name (if any):

Year(s) Built: Historic Building/Site: QYes 0 No
Historic Classification:

Historic District: 0 Trevitt's Addition Q Downtown Commercial
^71T

09/12/2025

HLC 222-25
$85.00
875735

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 33 of 99



Project Information

New Construction Expansion/Alteration Demolition

Briefly describe the proposed project:

Landmark Designation

Will the use change as a result of this application? 0 Yes 0 No

Please submit thefollowmg information with this application:

Narrative #1: Description of the project consistent with the Secretary of Interior's Standards for
Rehabilitation (page ?)

a Narrative #2: Explanation of the project consistent with the associated project type (pages ?):

Landmark Designation (#2-A)

Atterations/New Constructton/Relocation (#2-B)

Demolition (#2-C)

Ci Narrative #3: Description of the project consistent with the associated district design standards: New
Construction and Alteration (page ?)

The Dalles Commercial Historic District (#3-A)

Trevitt's Addition (#3-B)

Narrative #4, Signs (if applicable): Description of the project consistent with the associated historic
sign guideline criteria (page ?)

Elevation drawings (existing vs. proposed)

Current color photographs of the structure and/or site

List of all proposed materials/colors (product brochures recommended)

Site Plan (drawn to scale)

Historic photographs/documentation of the structure and/or site (encouraged)

Copy of all associated Historic Inventory information

Signature of Applicant Signature of Property Owner

^Cu ^o^^ ^-^'^^S'.
Date Date

2/11

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 34 of 99



Historic Landmarks Application 
 
 
 

Katie Montag 
420 E. 8th St. 
The Dalles OR. 97058 
541-340-0463 
kmm@gorge.net 
 
 
Property Information: 
Address: 
420 E. 8th St. 
The Dalles OR 97058 
Zone: RH 
Map and Tax Lot: O1N13 EO3CA08000 00 
Current Use: residence 
 
Unknown archeological resources on site 
 
 
 
NEW CONSTRUCTION 
Removal of current garage/shed that is falling down and could be dangerous. Build new 
detached 20 x 26 garage on property which is my home and will continue to be a 
residence. 
 
Construction will be lower in height than home, as it will be one level. Roof and siding 
will match current home colors. Building materials will be Douglas fir and plywood.   
 
No chemical or physical treatments proposed. 
 
The home on my property is historic and will not be altered due to this detached garage, 
nor will it affect the preservation or historic value of home.  The garage will be 
approximately 35 feet from home with an alley entrance.  This is a double lot and the 
garage will be in the southwest corner of lot with large Sycamore trees between home 
and garage.  The garage will be compatible with the size, scale and architectural features 
to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment.  
 
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (11.12.095,D) 
 

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 35 of 99

mailto:kmm@gorge.net


1.​  No changes in historic home. As stated in National Register the garage is “a small 
non-historic garage”, and “non contributing feature”. 

2.​ No changes in historic home. 
3.​ Proposed one story garage to be built after tear down of current structure which is 

falling down and dangerous to safety and welfare of people. 
4.​ Current garage is non historic per National Register and Preservation Specialist 

from the State Historic Office. 
5.​ Non historic garage and basic structure (see photo for details) 
6.​ No historic features. Colors of new garage will be the same. 
7.​ No chemical or physical treatments proposed. 
8.​ Detached garage around 35 feet from Historic home 
9.​ The unsafe current structure is not historic. 
10.​Considering that the current garage is detached from house, in addition to 

proposed replacement, the historic home will not be affected. 
 
Narrative #2-B: Alterations, New Construction, Relocations(11.12.070) 
 
3. Secretary standards followed as stated above. 
5.  A. Removal.Compatibility with secretary’s standards 
     B.  This home is not in a “Historic District”. the new construction is compatible in 
scale, height, volume, spacing, setback, roof pitch, color with Historic Home on the 
property.  The new garage will be a standard one story garage and wood structure. Only 
one window in proposed and will match color of entire garage.  Colors will match the 
historic home. Current State Historic Preservation Office information considers current 
garage “small non Historic garage and Non-contributing feature” of Historic Home.   
 
The current garage has a crumbling wood floor and no foundation making it unstable. In 
addition the shingles on roof are rotting and not keeping the rain out of garage. A new 
garage will comply with all codes and permits that my contractor will submit.   
 
The character of the property will be preserved and allow a car to be out of the alley or 
street and into the new garage. A car does not fit into current garage.   
    

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 36 of 99



Ziegenhagen Enterprises LLC OR CCB# 167975

Bid 20/x26/ Garage for Katie Montag 420 East 8th TD

Scope of Work 1: Create a set of plans to obtain a permit from Wasco County Building Codes for the
garage . Apply for the structural permit and pay the structural permit fee.

Scope of Work 3: excavate for and form and pour foundation to code for 20'x26' garage with 16"

wide footings and 6" thick stemwalls. Use Gsack 3500 psi min concrete. Backfill foundation when done.
% rebar uprights every 4' and two continuous runs horizontal 3" from bottom and 6" from top of

stemwall. Footing 2 runs of continuous Vz rebar. This foundation exceeds code requirements.

Scope of work 4: prep for concrete floor inside of the garage. Form and pour 5" thick concrete floor
with 1/2 rebar grid 2'0/C each way. Slope to garage door to code. Smooth finish. Sawn in crack control

joints. Use 6sack 3,500 PSI min concrete.

Scope of work 5: Frame and sheet 20'x26' garage with 2x4 walls #2 or better KD DougFir studs 16"
o/c. Sheet walls with 7/16 OSB sheeting. Sheet roof with 5/8" CDX plywood. Garage to have one 3'

man door and one 16' x 7' garage door. No insulation , no sheetrock, open soffits. Walls 8'-1" tail. Roof

pitch 6/12.

Scope of Work 6: Apply tyveck house wrap to wall sheeting and side with Hardie lap siding 7" reveal.
Trim doors and windows and corners with 5/4x4 forest trim. Fascia to be 5/4x6 forest trim.

Scope of Work 7: Install 3' man door. Install 16'x7' Garage door. Install 2 windows. Man door and
Garage door and windows (including all hardware) $2,200 allotment in this bid. If owner chooses doors

and windows that cost less they save the money if they cost more the difference is paid over and above

the bid price. This allotment will cover base level steel doors and white vinyl windows.

Scope of work 8: Apply one row of ice and water shield and then titanium brand underlayment or
30Lb felt to roof sheeting. Use painted metal Drip edge flashing at all roof edges. Use Owens Coming

continuous roof peak vent. Use Owens Corning Duration roofing (120 mph wind rating or equivalent) to

closely match house roofing.

Scope of work 9: Paint garage to match house using Sherwin Williams Duration paint.

Scope of work 10: Clean up and haul off all construction debris generated from scopes of work 1-10.

Labor and materials price for these scopes of work $37,500

,-

11 2

:./'••

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 37 of 99



Option 1: add insulation and change framing to 2x6 for code insulation R-21 walls R-38 ceiling = $ 3,300

Option 2: sheetrock the walls and ceiling to code with orange peel finish and primed/painted = $ 3,600

Electrical Rough Estimate: to have a light at the man door and above the garage door and inside the

garage, a garage door opener, an outside plug in next to garage door and inside plug ins on three walls

and move line to new garage = $3,300 (will be necessary to choose actual light fixtures and have
electrician meet on site to look at existing power to get an official bid).

Take down the existing out building and haul to the dump : $1,200

Any removal of the concrete slab would be at $100 an hour plus dump fees and concrete saw rental. A
rough estimate if all of it had to be removed would be $2,100.

I bid the garage at 20'x26' instead of 20'x25' because you already would have purchased the framing
materials for that extra foot ... and they would have been wasted: for example trusses span every two
feet already and sheets of plywood are 4' wide so at 25' you would not be using a foot of those

resources ..... If you want it to be 20'x25' there would be a credit of $280.

Let me know if you have any questions , or would like to make changes .

Thanks for the opportunity to bid your project....

'.A-e.^'^'i-

Scott A. Ziegenhagen

^^r a.. y^y-
Ziegenhagen Enteipeises LLC

2 I 2

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 38 of 99



^

y
t

^ w. v"v^
^

y

^ m^. ».
a».?- 's...
^^

-?
€•»

.ffj9•? y •V:
fi^i

^w^ ^

•s':
s

^
••.•

K w^m;»' m
*>— 3!

;•
) \1:
^ < ^m

.'•-.
:s

•» s^ •wA-

t ^
s^ y a

^ ^ ^^

^y^£» 1.•;
mB A iis^

^^^
'••>•

r*

WB •t I*-;

Bnuil!|MiiiBB!SBaaM!S!^^ IMMMinM

u ^: :s

'^r i.

r^
'*< s

-ti » S3

K;1>-.-'

^
tt

•f.

.¥ ."<'
-'•' .\

L'?.\l
f& •^

i^
3Siy

*,

^^^ F- ;

f.-'-'i-jy.

-f»
••

^KS

Sii
&^

^^S5 i"'A-..,
^ ;?c

^ p

:-^§
» 5
wiffr ^R^ r» ''

-ys:

^;^%.y ^M
V-.l ^•A-^Si^ El^ •I

-IM»:!,'S~. 2
^ ^?•

.\ s-
;'p Tf,-i

ft &

••3 h-. a i ^.^<
^u^

Mli^
a mss

<?: "I ^;;)•M»;
k mm^s ?'?^^••^ •(. •s'

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 39 of 99



*M

"--7

i^O -Qht - 'h^
^fcaMoi/4. N^^Huy
^3lM;nO /J-M^^T-i^V

^'J^/b yo 'r3-)-?fc/(] 9^t
^ hi<^ '3 °^b

03 o^foV^O ^^-l NJO

/SSi

,(--

F,
^
^
^
^
^\

/^•s •J

h-^.
's.

^
^

•s,
^^ s•I

if,
^

-7
/̂ ^^

-^.
?<

^ c?
if

3

'̂s \
^^£-

6^ ^f? T^
^

/
-^•w

••

^•%^ ^

/ x

s y
^^ r./

^Q
-9 9~^ (/

^ A/^b ^^ J-
^y/ *-7

/ s/

/

0^/
\.^ ^

^
/

/ 0
D

^/0^ ^/

^'s
/^

/
I/

^/
^//

•^//

-^/

/

/

/

^JA

^/^
7

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 40 of 99



•w:

 

^
s'
;^y<

NOTES:
^oundiat'ion - 6?' x 12" footiit9> S" x ^2" stemwaB
Slab - 4" concrete, slopped to drain to the front
Framing - 2x4 studs 16" oc with PT plate, header for door and window 4x8", 1/2 PLY CDX
(OSB if cheaper) sheeting walls and roof, Hardi Plank horizontal siding, with 5/4"x4"
Trim, 2X6" garage surround.
Window: 3'x4'slider Mandoor: 3"x 6'-8" with dead bolt and knob
Electrical to remain from existing structure

Roof to be similar to house 20'

20'\^$' 1\ \R G\KVJ.
\\tlf{l\lSv\>{>^ I:

tv ^•\."'\Ui AL i -'"•A ! Ml, "•.. \!
!R.\MM"1>. ^\."iRt!.. iK''\

lift.--.'.'' \\)U] i'!.\\flU \!UKi-
^; \*-.i •'\i..I^ ;/'• \ ~"', \i{ V J FKVK

i

s

^^
^'

I

\

.t

At.TERWTE
SOC-ft

; LOCCTiONS

2-CAR
GARAGE

V^I«00.'/S
OPTtOKAl.

t

s-s-s.s;-^^^ ^^^^^-^^^
Iff W XT n G/.RAGE DOOH

i-1 COK t'{-\N

II

yAM.IFACT.^REC'
HCC't "V'.SS'V't

g2.i-C..C^_......-......^.-.-......_...^..-^
^ ^

t2^- ^'
/'

^.I p£1Ui
<5
s
x s 2X«

ssf.yeo
A^lS •

0
—
<.;

s:
<;f)

—;•;
rawos; .,

22"

' 2" Oft I

Ofrl

CONCRETE '
•iLAUf-LUUS

C:0»tCttgT£ cO'jML'ATICh
PLAh iNCL'JOEi f'VQ.'STE.I.'Wf-LL
0.^ UONOPO-.Fi Sb-.B.F-G;

C'R^^S -rcnoN

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 41 of 99



These paint colors are the two to use as 
the ones used on the house (listed below) 
are discontinued.

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 42 of 99

Crystal Sayre
Line

Crystal Sayre
Line

Crystal Sayre
Line

Crystal Sayre
Line

Crystal Sayre
Oval



OREGON INVENTORY OF HISTORIC PKfJPERIIEB
HISTORIC RESOURCE SURVEY SHFi;'

***»<»»»«<

*

«

<(

^!^M]^A.'- ?
f: ";>;?NS;

^^^^:'^ '-: .•'. y^w£w^ '.
""' ^'1"'' „:,..,;.^^""w'"'

^s^. .j^-^.^e.
^SiS&:S"Jŷ

M"^ '•:

A^

••;'

•^ •'. ...d
^^•••. ,.x«t"<

*\<
-.

•^f

^,f, ff
•-^,syss^a-A

i~.'i^r
Eife* r ' ' •»

i*41'-^.! . '
•i^iiia iffl;i^^.'i <

.'. »;. •^^
m r-"^j'l•M S til?E-» !s. yfM .'.. si'

* fS^W9S&s L^
m m •s. ^?*^3 *-.1 ',^m :i.i

•.;^y~t....^^"""-"^ .--••M! '^VWSVR'S-SK!«

it

K
<

rt** Historic Name: ,Dr. J. A_._Reuter
Residence

!(

* Common Name:
»

<

« Address: 420 E. Eighth St.

* OMner: Wm. E. & Doreen K. Gord

* Address: 420 E. 8th St.
<t The Dalles, OR 97058
»

» Lot 4&5 Block 5
<- Addition Neyce-Gibson
* Flat

Date oi Canstruction c. 1890/1909
Present u.se/'-function Residence^

)l»t*» Ta;< Lot 5400, 1N-13-3CA

unyina': use/function: Residence
ftrea of significance/study theme: Architecture. Medicine.
Architectural style: Bungalow on Queen Anne

Plan type/shape: Rectangular

.Arch./Blcr.,i{ known.

No. o{ ?.torie£: T\vo

Foundation material: Stone Mas., stucco finishesDasipmRnt <'//r» : __Y£S.
Roo-f -farm ^ inaterials: _ __ Gable, bellcast eaves. Cedar shingles.
Wall construction: Wood frame Structurs; {rams: Wood frame /at fro
F';' i "i a r y w i n d DM t y ye; 1/1 DH sides and back. Leaded beveled S art glass top lites and sidelit
Primary e;',terior surfacing mater i ail:.: _Horizontal channel drop siqinq, roughcast stucco gables.
Outstanding decorative features: Squared column and beamed roof veranda, bracketed eaves, half
timbered gables, basalt basement, spindle work at rear porches.

Condition: X Excellent Good _, Fair Detario-at yd ____ Maved 'date'

>';!5cioci at ed Structures: Garage at southwest corner of rear of lot on alley.

:.terior a 1 t cr d i r.!nc:.,'i:<Cd'. t i ens (d,>ltl(l!: "Modernized" to Bungalow Style from Victorian, still_
visible in back of hoiise, front and fyont sides, veranda on east and north._.._— - _„_

in own archeologica! feitures o* s'.te:

'•'cteMorthy landscace features: Very large mature street trees and trees on lot._ Large si_te_
wit-h h^narl 1a"n<? appy-npyi at-o cjh-rnT-ihor-y . Wp 1 1 maintained^-.-—-.-._.._.__. . .

Recorded by;_Al Staehli and Daniel Meader _ ___ i'';.».^- ^0_/8^and_V85
Negative No.: Roll 3, frane_10____ S'id(; h'..:

''-.. '.'it '! " In" ~T:\ u;- v No . 146

91

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 43 of 99



Oregon Historic Site Record 

LOCATION AND PROPERTY NAME

address: 420 E 8th St historic name: Reuter, Dr J A, House

The Dalles, Wasco County current/other names:
assoc addresses: block/lot/tax lot:
location descr: twnshp/rng/sect/qtr sect: 1N 13E 3 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS

resource type: Building height (stories): 2.5 total elig resources: 1 total inelig resources:
elig evaluation: eligible/significant NR Status: Individually Listed

prim constr date: c.1890 second date: 1909 date indiv listed: 06/27/1997

primary orig use: Single Dwelling orig use comments:
second orig use:
primary style: Craftsman prim style comments:
secondary style: sec style comments:
primary siding: Horizontal Board siding comments:
secondary siding: Wood:Other/Undefined

plan type: architect:
builder: Maxon, R D

comments/notes:

GROUPINGS / ASSOCIATIONS
Not associated with any surveys or groupings.

SHPO INFORMATION FOR THIS PROPERTY

NR date listed: 06/27/1997

ILS survey date: 

RLS survey
date: 

Special Assessment

Status Term End Yr
Closed 1st  2012

106 Project(s): None

Federal Tax
Project(s): None

ARCHITECTURAL / PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
(Includes expanded description of the building/property, setting, significant landscape features, outbuildings and alterations)

Refer to scanned documents links.

HISTORY
(Chronological, descriptive history of the property from its construction through at least the historic period - preferably to the present)

Refer to scanned documents links.

RESEARCH INFORMATION

Title Records Census Records Property Tax Records Local Histories
Sanborn Maps Biographical Sources SHPO Files Interviews
Obituaries Newspapers State Archives Historic Photographs
City Directories Building Permits State Library

Local Library: University Library:
Historical Society: Other Respository:

Bibliography:

Oregon Historic Preservation Office 1 of 1 

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 44 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 45 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 46 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 47 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 48 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 49 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 50 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 51 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 52 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 53 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 54 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 55 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 56 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 57 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 58 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 59 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 60 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 61 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 62 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 63 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 64 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 65 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 66 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 67 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 68 of 99

Crystal Sayre
Highlight



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 69 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 70 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 71 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 72 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 73 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 74 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 75 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 76 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 77 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 78 of 99



Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 79 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#1: VIewing the northeast corner of the home through two Sycamore trees

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 80 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

# 2: Viewing the east side of the home from the side street

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 81 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#3: Viewing the southeast corner of the home; wrap-around porch

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 82 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#4: Viewing the south side of the home from back alley

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 83 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#5: Viewing the northwest cornerof the home from edge of lawn

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 84 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#6: Viewing the northwest corner of the home from the front sidewalk

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 85 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#7: Viewing the front entrance door, side panels and transom

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 86 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#8: Viewing the small pocket door leading to the front entrance from inside

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 87 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#9: Viewing the oak banister and antique shell light from the foyer

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 88 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#10: Viewing the front parlor fireplace and built in wooden bench

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 89 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#11: Viewing the bay window from the library

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 90 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#12: Viewing the mission style hanging lamp (front parlor and library)

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 91 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#13: Viewing the library and pocket doors from the front parlor entryway

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 92 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#14: Viewing the chandelier over dining room table; etching in background

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 93 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#15: Viewing the stairway leading from the foyer to the upstairs rooms

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 94 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

# 16: Viewing the billiard room and table from the card room

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 95 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#17: Viewing the card room and fireplace from the billiard room

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 96 of 99



Dr. J. A. Reuter House 
Wasco County, Oregon

#18: Viewing the upstairs bathroom from hallway

Agenda Item 7. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 97 of 99



Historic Landmarks Commission 
Resolution 207-25 | Page 1 of 2 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS RESOLUTION NO. 207-25 

Adopting The Dalles Historic Landmarks Commission Application #222-25, Katie Montag. 
This application is for a Historic Landmarks Commission hearing to gain approval for the 
demolition of the existing non-contributing detached garage located at the southwest corner of 
the property, accessed from the alley, and for the construction of a new detached garage in the 
same location. The subject property is located at 420 East 8th Street, The Dalles, Oregon, and is 
further described as 1N 13E 3CA Tax Lot 5400, zoned “RH” – High Density Residential. The 
site includes a residence listed on the National Register of Historic Places and the Oregon 
Inventory of Historic Properties, historically known as the Dr. J.A. Reuter Residence. 

RECITALS: 
A. The Historic Landmarks Commission of the City of The Dalles has, on November19,

2025 conducted a public hearing to consider the above request.
B. A Staff Report was presented, stating findings of fact and conclusions of law.
C. Staff Report 222-25 and the minutes of the November 19, 2025 hearing, upon approval,

provide the basis for this resolution and are herein attached by reference.

II. RESOLUTION: Now, therefore, be it FOUND, DETERMINED, and ORDERED by the
Historic Landmarks Commission of the City of The Dalles as follows:
A. In all respects as set forth in Recitals, Part “I” of this resolution.
B. Historic Landmarks Review 222-25, Katie Montag, is approved with the following

conditions:

Conditions of Approval: 
1. Work shall be completed in substantial conformance to the pictures and proposals

as submitted and reviewed.
2. The applicant shall submit plans for a demolition permit to the City of The Dalles

and then Wasco County Building Codes.
3. The applicant shall submit plans for a building permit to City of The Dalles and

then Wasco County Building Codes.
4. The applicant shall submit a Physical Constraints Permit to be reviewed and

approved by the City Engineer for all cut/fill, grading, and groundwork required for
the construction of the new detached garage structure, as applicable.

5. The new replacement garage exterior materials and colors shall be compatible with
the historic residence and match as closely as possible.

CITY of THE DALLES 
313 COURT STREET 

THE DALLES, OREGON 97058

(541) 296-5481 ext. 1125
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Agenda Item 8. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 98 of 99



Historic Landmarks Commission 
Resolution 207-25 | Page 2 of 2 

6. If historical artifacts over 75 years old are found on the site in relation to the
proposed project, resulting from land disturbance, excavation, or grading activities,
all applicable state laws and regulations shall be followed in accordance with the
guidance of the State Archeologist.

7. The applicant is required to notify the Community Development Department of any
alteration of approved plans.

III. APPEALS, COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES:
A. Any party of record may appeal a decision of the Historic Landmarks Commission to

the City Council for review.  Appeals must be made in accordance to Article 11.12.090
of The Dalles Municipal Code, Chapter 11.12 Historic Resources, and must be filed
with the City Clerk within ten (10) days of the date of mailing of this Order.

B. Failure to exercise this approval within the time line set either by Order or by The
Dalles Municipal Code will invalidate this permit.

ADOPTED THIS 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025. 

Forust Ercole, Chair 
Historic Landmarks Commission 

I, Sandy Freund, Senior Planner and Historic Landmarks Commission Corrdinator, Community 
Development Department of the City of the Dalles, hereby certify that the foregoing Order was 
adopted at the meeting of the City Historic Landmarks Commission, held on November 19, 
2025. 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 
Sandy Freund, Senior Planner and Historic Landmarks Commission Coordinator 
Community Development Department, City of The Dalles 

Agenda Item 8. A. 
Attachment 1

HLC Agenda Packet 
November 19, 2025 | Page 99 of 99


	HLC 222-25 Montag Staff Report.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	City of The Dalles Municipal Code, Chapter 11.12 Historic Resources

	HLC RES 207-25 for HLC 222-25 Montag.pdf
	HISTORIC LANDMARKS RESOLUTION NO. 207-25
	B. Historic Landmarks Review 222-25, Katie Montag, is approved with the following conditions:

	ADOPTED THIS 19TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2025.
	Forust Ercole, Chair
	AYES:
	NAYS:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:
	ATTEST:
	Sandy Freund, Senior Planner and Historic Landmarks Commission Coordinator
	Community Development Department, City of The Dalles




